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MEMORANDUM 

 

To  : Don Gerrish, Interim Town Manager    

From  :  Brent Libby, Fire-Rescue Chief  

Date  : December 4, 2018 

Re  : Growth Impacts   

 

 

The ongoing growth in Windham has certainly had an effect on the Fire-Rescue Department. As a 

result the department has experienced several changes to accommodate the growth and to provide 

adequate and efficient services. In the last 5 years (2013- 2017) the department has seen a 24% 

increase in calls for service. To meet this increase in responses we have adjusted our staffing model, 

we have changed how we deploy our resources and from where they are deployed. As the landscape 

evolves we continue to look ways to best serve.  

 

We continue to struggle with the best method to provide fire protection in the areas of town not 

served by public water. The apparatus and personnel resources needed to fight a fire in our rural 

areas increase, nearly doubling. While this is based on the size of the fire and water supply needed to 

contain and extinguish it our initial response is larger in preparation for the worst. Limited or 

inadequate access to homes as a result of poorly designed or maintained private roads reduces our 

accessibility and further complicates our response in those areas. With further development in these 

areas the probability that we will encounter one these incidents continues to rise. 

  

The growth in town and in communities around us has created a significant traffic problem. We have 

to deal with traffic on every incident. We experience the challenge of trying maneuver and respond 

safely to calls for service. Once on scene it is inevitable that we will further the impact the flow of 

traffic while we treat patients and mitigate hazards. We currently manage traffic with a division of 

our call company known as Fire-Police. This crew of seven people responds when they are available 

to direct traffic. This provides assistance and relief for both the Police and Fire Departments. Our 

ability to efficiently detour traffic, especially in North Windham is very limited and in some areas is 

non-existent without sending motorist 30 minutes in another direction. This creates a significant 

challenge for on scene personnel, enormous frustration for local and visiting motorist and further 

safety concerns. The shear amount of traffic further complicates the ability of the call company 

personnel to get to a scene in a timely manner, reducing available personnel immediately and in 

some cases making the decision for them as to whether they will even respond. 
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Staffing is a constant challenge. As a combination department we utilize full-time, per-diem, paid on 

call (formerly volunteers) and college live-in students to provide our services. Within the last five 

years we have increased full-time staffing as well as per-diem hours to ensure 24 hour coverage at 

the north station. We have seen a decline in the number of paid on call personnel in town. There are 

several anecdotal factors we believe attribute to this. With the decrease in available housing stalk 

and the booming economy many of our younger members aren’t able to find affordable local 

housing. Most of the call members have one or two other jobs that are out of town limiting their 

availability. Training requirements have steadily increased making it more challenging for someone 

not in the career full time to maintain the state and federal requirements. The increase in call volume 

for this group translates to either increased time away from their home and families or they simply 

don’t have the time to respond at all.  

 

Our department has utilized per-diem personnel to supplement our staffing for nearly 20 years and it 

has worked well as a stop gap. As the greater Portland area has grown many other departments have 

also taken to this model to supplement their staffing. We have continued to struggle to fill all our 

per-diem hours. Our industry simply doesn’t have the number of trained people to fill all the 

positions. Most if not all our per-diem personnel have two other jobs. They often work full time at 

another department and per-diem in at least one other community. This creates a limited pool of 

personnel and staggering hours worked for the employee. The affordable care act further restricted 

the per-diem hours personnel can work due to the requirement to offer health care based on an 

average number of hours worked. We have reached a time to look at transitioning some of these 

positions from per-diem to full time firefighter/EMTs to allow for consistent coverage. The phased 

approach that we used for the paramedics would help to accomplish this.  

 

Location, demographics and call statistics has led us to staff the Public Safety Building and the 

North Windham Station. Neither of these facilities is designed to adequately house 24/7 Fire-EMS 

personnel. Over the years modifications have been made to best accommodate on duty personnel and 

administration, however without significant renovations and likely additions all available space is 

being utilized. The public safety building is strategically placed in the center of town. Unfortunately 

it is limited when it comes to apparatus housing; the size of the apparatus bays does not allow us to 

accommodate all of our apparatus. This hampers our ability to further adjust our fleet and responses. 

This area of town is also identified as a growth area and has been subject to several new and 

proposed developments.  

 

Increased call volume has an impact on our apparatus. We continue to modify and adjust how we 

respond and what we respond with based on the nature and acuity of the call. Just the same, more 

calls results in more time on the road and more wear and tear resulting in required maintenance. For 

some vehicles this could also result in replacement sooner than we may have been used to. The two 

front line ambulances have been averaging just below 30,000 miles annually. Our mechanic is a 

shared position with Gorham and is responsible to for a combined 40 vehicles; we are quickly 

approaching a time when we will need to reevaluate his workload. The capital replacement plan 

should also be reviewed to ensure each vehicle is listed with an estimated life expectancy and 

replacement value to allow for proper planning.  
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In the Fire-Rescue Department we continue to struggle to allocate the time and resources needed for 

fire prevention and an effective community risk reduction program. The full time deputy chief is 

assigned this task however it is among daily operations and emergency responses. As a result we 

have not been able to perform proactive life safety inspections of our multi-family residences           

(3 family or more) or many of our commercial and multi-use occupancies. A comprehensive and 

consistent fire prevention program would educate property owners; provide vital pre-planning for 

response personnel and violation enforcement. A position focused in this area would help to handle 

plans review, proactive inspections with the needed code research and consistent follow up. This 

position could very easily be a full time position within the fire department. With a primary 

responsibility of prevention, the position could also be used as staffing for major incident responses. 

Additionally with proper certification and training there would be a potential to bring plans review 

for most projects that currently go to the fire marshal’s office into the department for a fee. The 

potential could also exist to create a shared position with code enforcement. At a minimum a part-

time position would help to start the process of getting us caught up on needed inspections. This 

effort remains a high priority for the department.  

 

Overall I believe the town has been successful maintaining the Fire-Rescue Department and the 

services we offer in comparison to the growth of the community. It will be important that we 

monitor the present conditions with future development to forecast and implement the changes 

needed so that we can continue to meet the needs of Windham.  
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